
Resources and Transformation
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria County Council 107-117 

Botchergate Cumbria House  Carlisle
Cumbria  CA3 8NA  

Tel 01228 606060  Email member.services@cumbria.gov.uk

1

18 November 2016

To:  The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 
Fire Local Pension Board

Agenda
CUMBRIA FIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD
A meeting of the Cumbria Fire Local Pension Board will be held as follows: 

Date: Tuesday 29 November 2016
Time: 10.00am
Place: Room 110, Cumbria House, 107-117 Botchergate, Carlisle, 

CA1 1RZ

Dawn Roberts
Corporate Director – Resources and Transformation

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Nicola Harrison
Direct Line: 01228 226906
Email: nicola.harrison@cumbria.gov,uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of  Cumbria



2

MEMBERSHIP

Employer members (2) Employee members  (2)
Mr B Doughty (Chair)
Mr G Strong

Mr M Nicholson
vacancy

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/ 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/


3

A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any items on the agenda.

3  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial 
interest.



4

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).   

4  MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Fire Local Pension 
Board held on 8th June 2016 (copy enclosed). 

5  MEMBERSHIP & TERMS OF REFERENCE

To note any changes in membership to the Board

6  FUTURE MEETINGS

Dates of future meetings of the Board are proposed:-

 April 2017 (date tbc)
 November 2017 (date tbc)
 April/May 2018 (date tbc)
 October 2018 (date tbc)

7  PRESENTATION : FPS FINANCES

An informal discussion with the Group Finance Manager, Corporate Accounting and 



5

Finance Manager, Resources & Transformation.

8  ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16

To receive a report from the Assistant Director-Finance (copy enclosed)

PART 2: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

9  MONITORING REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

To receive a report from the Assistant Director-Finance (copy enclosed)



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA FIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD

Minutes of the first Meeting of the Cumbria Fire Local Pension Board held on 
Wednesday, 8th June at 2:00pm at Cumbria FRS HQ, Carleton Avenue, Penrith, 
CA10 2FA

PRESENT:

Employer Representatives

Barry Doughty - CCC(Chair)
Gary Strong - CCC

Employee (member) Representatives 

Mark Nicholson - Active/Deferred & FBU 
member

Also in Attendance:-

Steve Healey - Deputy Chief Fire Officer
Fiona Miller - Senior Manager - Pensions & Financial Services 
Julie Dole - Finance Manager - Regulatory & Benefits 
Graham Leech - Technical Lead – Pay & Rewards

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Graeme Higgins – Active & FBU member 
and Julie Crellin – Assistant Director (Finance) s151 Officer. 

2 MEMBERSHIP & TERMS OF REFERENCE

Fiona Miller explained that Graeme Higgins has reluctantly tendered his resignation 
from the Board, and officers are proposing a mailshot to the active membership 
inviting applications to the board.  She further explained that the terms of reference 
did not allow for substitutes.  Barry Doughty confirmed the application process 
should proceed as a matter of urgency and expressed his disappointment to lose a 
valuable member of the Board.   

3    DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest.  

4 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

7

Agenda Item 4



2

There were no press or public in attendance.

5 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of 24th November 2015 were reviewed and accepted as 
an accurate record of the meeting.

6 FUTURE MEETINGS

Dates of future meetings of the Board are proposed:-

 14th October 2016 at 2pm
 April 2017- to be confirmed

7 THE PENSION’S REGULATOR – SURVEY OF PUBLIC SERVICE 
PENSION SCHEMES DECEMBER 2015

Consideration was given to a report by the Assistant Director – Finance regarding 
the Pensions Regulator survey of Public Service pension schemes carried out 
between July and September 2015.  The Regulator expects well-run schemes to 
have appropriate tools and processes for all nine areas addressed in the Code of 
Practice no. 14 (the Code).

The Cumbria scheme has fulfilled many of the requirements of the Code, and is 
continuing to establish appropriate procedures to ensure high standards of 
governance.  It is anticipated the Regulator will closely monitor Fire and Rescue 
Schemes in coming months.  The intention being to use its educate approach to 
help Funds with compliance and addressing key risks.

Discussions ensued regarding the absence of guidance or standardised practices 
due to the absence of National Scheme Advisory Board (NSAB) still being in its 
infancy.  BD confirmed he has previously raised concerns with both Government 
and non-Government ministers.  It was noted the NSAB had been formed in 
February, and BD suggested that GS take it up further with Conservative ministers 
and MN to take it up through the FBU.  Officers were requested to provide a list of 
concerns to be raised.  

PART 2:  ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE 
PRESS AND PUBLIC  

8 DISCRETIONS POLICY

Consideration was given to a report by the Assistant Director – Finance on the 
proposed discretions policy.  An overview on the proposed policy was given. Once 
agreed the policy would be approved by the Chief Fire Officer, as per the 
delegations to him in the County Council’s Constitution.

8



3

9 MONITORING REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Members were given an overview of the monitoring report. The annual YPS 
performance data to 31st March 2016 was reviewed.  Members were advised of the 
revised arrangement with Lancashire County Council for the discharge of 
administration functions, which became effective from 1st February 2016.  Updates 
will be provided to future meetings to monitor uptake.

10 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

A range of issues pertinent to the Board were discussed.

Meeting finished at 16:00pm.

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4
Agreed by Cumbria County Council 23rd April 2015

Cumbria Local Pension Board (Fire)
1. Functions of the Cumbria Fire Local Pension Board

1.1. To assist the Scheme Manager of the Cumbria Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 
to secure compliance with:-

a) The regulations covering administration of the Firefighters’ Pension 
Schemes (FPS);

b) Other legislation relation to the governance and administration of the 
FPS; and

c) The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the 
FPS.

1.2. And to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the 
FPS.

1.3. The Board must have a policy and framework to meet the knowledge and 
understanding requirements of section 248A of the Pensions Act 2004.

1.4. In its role in assisting the Scheme Manager as described above, the Board 
shall report twice yearly to Council on matters reviewed and suggestions for 
their consideration.  Where the Board is concerned that due consideration has 
not been given to matters of non-compliance the Board may submit a report 
for consideration by the Audit and Assurance Committee as the body 
designated by the Scheme Manager with the capacity to investigate such 
matters on its behalf. 

1.5. The Board is constituted under the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and the 
Fire Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2014 and is 
therefore not subject to the requirements of s.101 of the Local Government 
Act 1972. The Board has no remit as a decision making body but is 
established to assist the Scheme Manager fulfil its functions which shall be 
deemed to cover all aspects of governance and administration of the Pension 
Scheme.

2. Operating Structure and Codes of Conduct of the Cumbria 
Fire Local Pension Board

2.1. The operating structure and codes of conduct of the Cumbria Fire Local 
Pension Board is as follows:

11

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 4
Agreed by Cumbria County Council 23rd April 2015

a) The Board will be quorate if 50% of designated members (i.e. 2) are in 
attendance.

b) Prior to appointment to the Board all members will be required to sign 
up to the Board’s Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy.  As 
a body representing the public interest the Code of Conduct and 
Conflicts of Interest Policy of members of the Fire Local Pension Board 
will be aligned to those applicable to members of the Pension 
Committee and is available on the Councils’ website. 

c) The Board will meet as a minimum twice a year. Meetings will be held 
during normal working hours and will predominantly be held within 
County boundaries. 

d) Where required, a minimum of two Board members (one from the 
scheme member representatives and one from the scheme employer 
representatives) or the Scheme Manager can request a special 
meeting be convened.  Notice of ten working days must be given.

e) Creation of working parties / sub groups – as a non-decision-making 
body the Board have no authority to establish working parties / sub-
groups. 

f) Voting rights – Each member shall have an equal vote and, should it be 
required, the Chair will have the casting vote.

3. Commissioning of Service providers and Advisors 

3.1. All members of the Cumbria Fire Local Pension Board have the right to 
access the support of independent advisors, however due regard has to be 
taken of securing value for money and as such whether in the first instance 
officers of the County Council could provide the assistance required. 

3.2. Items of expenditure by the Board must have prior approval from the Section 
151 Officer.

4. Role of Officers

4.1. Reasonable secretarial and professional support will be provided by Officers 
of the Scheme Manager.  Costs associated with this will be charged to 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service.

5. Publication and Data Protection

5.1. As a general principle meetings will be open to the public. 

12



Page 3 of 4
Agreed by Cumbria County Council 23rd April 2015

5.2. Paper or electronic versions (as requested) of all agendas and papers will be 
provided to all members of the Board prior to a meeting. The Chair can accept 
that items be tabled on the day should such a need arise.

5.3. As a matter of policy the Pension Board has adopted the principals of 
paperless working, therefore as a matter of course public access to all 
agendas, public papers and minutes etc. will be available on the Council’s 
website. On request alternative media versions are available.

5.4. The County Council as the Scheme Manager is the registered data controller 
of the Cumbria FPS, and as such all policies and practices in this regard 
applicable within the County Council are directly applicable to the Board.

6. Board Membership 

6.1. Equal representation between scheme employers and scheme members is 
required.  The membership of the Cumbria Fire Local Pension Board will 
comprise two scheme member representatives and two scheme employer 
representatives.  Substitutes are not permitted.

6.2. Appointment of Board members - To ensure an open and transparent 
selection process and to ensure the Scheme Manager meets its obligation to 
ensure appointed members have the relevant understanding and capacity, the 
selection process will be through application, matching to a role profile and 
interview.  The Appointment Panel will consist of the Section 151 Officer, 
Monitoring Officer and Portfolio Holder for Finance.

6.3. Appointments will be for four years and there will be no limit on the number of 
times a member of the board can seek to be reappointed.

6.4. The two scheme member representatives will be selected to ensure all 
membership groups within the Fund are covered.

6.5. Appointment of the Chair / Vice Chair – the Scheme Manager will appoint 
the Chair and the Vice Chair.  The roles will be split with one being a scheme 
representative member rep and one being a scheme representative  employer 
rep and this will be alternated on a two yearly cycle. 

6.6. Expenses - Reimbursement of reasonable expenses for attendance at 
meetings and training sessions will be per the Council’s agreed policies and 
rates for Elected Members. All such costs will be met directly by Cumbria Fire 
and Rescue Service. 

6.7. Relevant knowledge and Capacity – the Scheme Manager must ensure that 
each person appointed to the Board has the relevant knowledge and the 
capacity to represent the employers or members (as appropriate) of the 
Scheme.  Initially this will be done through selection by the Scheme Manager 
but, following appointment, it is a member’s individual responsibility to ensure 

13



Page 4 of 4
Agreed by Cumbria County Council 23rd April 2015

they attend all training etc. to enable them to continue to fulfil the experience 
and capacity requirements.  Full training will be provided and all reasonable 
costs will be met by Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service.  To ensure 
compliance with the above a general level of attendance at meetings and 
training events is required.

14



FIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD

Meeting date: 29 November 2016

From: Assistant Director - Finance

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE FIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
2015/16

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides an Annual Report outlining the work of the 
Pension Board in 2015/16. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 The Annual Report of the Fire Local Pension Board contributes to the 
Council Plan by helping:

 To be a modern and efficient Council

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 That the Board accept the Annual Report of the Fire Local Pension 
Board for 2015/16.

3.2 That the Board request an annual update on Local Fire Board activities 
be presented to the Audit & Assurance Committee on an annual basis.

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 The Annual Report of the Fire Local Pension Board is presented in Appendix 
A to this report and the Board is requested to review this and either approve 
the annual report or amend as appropriate.

4.2 At the Fire Local Pension Board meeting on 8th June 2016, Members 
requested that feedback from the Board be presented to Council. It was 
agreed that officers would arrange for an update to go on the full council 
agenda annually.

15

Agenda Item 8



4.3 It has subsequently been recommended that it is more appropriate that a 
joint report outlining the work of both the Fire Local Pension Board and the 
Cumbria Local Pension Board be presented annually to the Audit & 
Assurance Committee with the first report being presented in June 2017.

5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 Option 1. To approve the draft Annual Report of the Fire Local Pension 
Board.

5.2 Option 2. To propose amendments to the draft Annual Report.

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no resource or value for money implications associated with this 
report.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 It is a function of the Fire Local Pension Board to ensure the effective and 
efficient governance and administration of the FPS

8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 The presentation of the Annual Report to the Audit & Assurance Committee 
will assist the Fire Pension Board in fulfilling its function to ensure the 
effective and efficient governance and administration of the FPS.

Julie Crellin
Assistant Director – Finance (S151 Officer)

November 2016

APPENDICES

1. Draft Annual Report of the Fire Local Pension Board for 2015/16

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact:
Gill Welbourn, Technical Finance Officer- Pensions
01228 226566
gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk
 

16

mailto:gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk


ANNUAL REPORT OF THE FIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD FOR 
2015/16

As Chairman of the Fire Local Pension Board (LPB) it is my pleasure to present, the 
Annual Report for 2015/16 on behalf of my fellow Board Members. 

Background
The Public Service Pensions Act (PSPA) 2013 introduced the requirement to have a 
Local Pension Board to assist in the governance of the Scheme. The Board has no 
remit as a decision making body but is established to assist Cumbria County Council 
as the Administering Authority to fulfil its functions which cover all aspects of 
governance and administration of the FireFighters’ Pension Scheme (FPS).

The PSPA 2013 also provided a new regulatory oversight by the Pensions 
Regulator. The regulator issued a code of practice no. 14 – Governance and 
administration of public service pension schemes (the “code”) in April 2015.  The 
code provides scheme managers (Cumbria County Council as the local 
administering authority) and pension board members with a summary of their key 
governance and administration duties, standards of conduct and practice expected in 
relation to those duties.

There have been two meetings to date, in November 2015 and June 2016. The 
board will continue to meet bi-annually, with the next meeting scheduled to take 
place on 14 October 2016.  

Membership
There is equal representation between scheme employer and scheme member 
representative.

The administering authority must ensure that each person appointed to the Board 
has the relevant experience and the capacity to represent the employers or 
members (as appropriate) of the Fund.  Initially this was done through selection by 
the Administration Authority but, following appointment, it becomes a member’s 
individual responsibility to ensure they attend training, and keep abreast of issues to 
enable them to continue to fulfil the experience and capacity requirements.  

Initial training was provided outlining Board duties and background to the FPS, the 
Cumbria FPS and Pensions Administration Service.  Further training will be provided 
in accordance with a training policy and programme to be developed once guidance 
has been issued by the National Scheme Advisory Board. The training programme 
will be dynamic in order to incorporate national policy and regulatory changes as 
required, and will be linked to the Board’s Work Programme.
 

Training Delivery Date
Training File with key fund & wider 
governance documents

Internal 24/11/15

An overview of the Fire Pension Service Internal 24/11/15
Overview of the Pensions Administration 
Service

External 24/11/15

Overview of Scheme Discretions policy Internal 08/06/16

17



Work Programme during 2015/16
At the first meeting the Board considered the arrangements that needed to be 
addressed to ensure operational governance met legislative requirements.  This 
included the formal adoption of the Code of Conduct (Conflicts of Interests) Policy 
and endorsing and adopting the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme policy 
on reporting breaches to the Pension Regulator.  Members were required to confirm 
their broad understanding of the role of the Board and the individual knowledge and 
understanding requirements for Board Members.

The Board approved the Administration and Communications Policy and Scheme 
Discretions at their second meeting.  They also reviewed the Pensions Regulator 
Survey of Public Service pension Schemes, and received a report reviewing material 
risk management; policy and performance monitoring; governance and national 
regulatory changes over the period.

Looking forward to 2016/17
The Work Plan for 2016/17 will reflect any guidance received from the national 
Scheme Advisory Board. This plan will include:-

 2016 Triennial Actuarial Valuation 
 Fund monitoring
 Selection of areas for further in-depth analysis
 Continuing to develop knowledge and understanding of the Board 

I would like to convey the Board’s thanks to all the Council’s and Your Pension 
Service staff involved in administering the Cumbria FPS for their work during the 
year in supporting the management and beneficiaries of the Fund.

Finally I would like to thank my fellow Board Members for their contributions during 
2015/16.  

Cllr. Barry Doughty
Chairman
September 2016

18



Document is Restricted

19

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

49

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 MEMBERSHIP & TERMS OF REFERENCE
	8 ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16
	Paper 8 Appendix 1 Draft annual report 2015-16

	9 MONITORING REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
	Paper 9 Appendix 1 Risk Register
	Paper 9 Appendix 2 YPS Performance Q1 1617
	Paper 9 Appendix 3 Register of Breaches
	Paper 9 Appendix 4 Extract from Cumbria County Council’s Statement of Accounts Section 8 and notes 37 and 38
	Paper 9 Appendix 5 Draft Work Programme


